The following questions and answers are provided for informational purposes only. Any answer provided does not constitute a change to the RFP. Any changes to the solicitation will be made by formal amendment only utilizing a Standard Form 30. 
1) Question: The Performance Requirements Summary of the PWS (Technical Exhibit 1), on page 37, refers in the first block to “NeL-NAR-ASHORE_ICD-2008091” as the source to identify the legacy interfaces to be maintained. However, the solicitation includes an ICD “NeL-NAR-Ashore_ICD-20090814” within the Attachment 12 zip file.  Which of these ICD documents is applicable, and/or where do I find NeL-NAR-ASHORE_ICD-2008091?

Answer: The reference to the Navy eLearning ICD (NeL-NAR-ASHORE_ICD-2008091) contained within the PWS is outdated. The ICD version associated with Attachment 12 to the solicitation (NeL-NAR-Ashore_ICD-20090814) is the correct version. The PWS will be corrected to reflect references to ICD version NeL-NAR-Ashore_ICD-20090814 and the revised PWS will be posted.

2) 
Question: Can you please advise as to whether there is an incumbent contractor for this requirement?  If so, could you please provide the contractor name and the contract number that was awarded?  The announcement implied that this is a replacement for existing specified shore-side Navy eLearning capabilities.

Answer: There is no incumbent contractor currently providing the Core (Phase I) and Post-Core (Post-Phase I) capabilities of ETMDS.

3) Question: Request the Government provide a basis, further breakdown, and assumptions for the $10.2M estimate to complete all PWS tasks during the POP. (Reference RFP Section L, subsection 2.6.2, page 69)

Answer: The results from market research and the responses to Request for Information (RFI) MKTSVY-06FA8A indicated that there are multiple COTS/GOTS products that could satisfy the Government's requirements under this Solicitation with only minor modifications as defined in FAR 2.101 "Commercial Items".  The Government estimates provided in Section L, paragraph 2.6.2 of the Solicitation were developed with these findings in mind.  The Government anticipates that, at most, minor tailoring to the program interfaces and/or core software product of an existing COTS/GOTS product may be necessary to meet the requirements of the PWS.
4) Question: Is the Government’s estimate of $10.2M or the winning contract amount the ceiling of the IDIQ contract?  If neither, what is the approximate expected ceiling? (Reference RFP Section L, subsection 2.6.2, page 69)

Answer: The Government's estimate was provided for informational purposes only and will not necessarily be used to set the contract ceiling.

5)   Question: We understand the current LMS license supports up to 1.2 million users. The RFP states that the new system should have the technical architecture to support up to 1.3 million users.  Is the Government’s intent to have vendors provide a license cost for a maximum of 1.3 million? (Reference RFP Section M, section 1.1 Subfactor 1.A, page 81)
Answer: Yes, the Government intends for offerors to provide a license price for a maximum of 1,300,000 users.
6) Question: Although the Thinq Learning Solutions application will be replaced by ETMDS when it expires in December 2012, the current Thinq O&M contract will end in 2010. Does the Government require the offeror to include Thinq software maintenance costs as part of the ETMDS proposal submission or will Thinq O&M be procured separately? (Reference PWS, section 1.2, page 4)

Answer: The Thinq LMS software maintenance will be procured separately.
7) Question: What does the Government mean by “The Explanation” in block 12 of and does the attachment count towards the page count? (Reference Attachment 6, Block 12)
Answer: The word “explanation” is referring to the summary description of the contract work, including the nature and scope of work, its relevancy to this contract, and a description of any problems encountered and your corrective actions. The one page summary description that is to be attached to the Relevant Experience form DOES count toward the maximum ten page limit.
8) Question: Does the Government intend for the Offeror to submit the 3 required past performance contracts in the Offeror’s own format in section 4.0 in addition to the questionnaire or is section 4.0 only for the questionnaire? (Reference RFP Section L, section 4.0, page 68)
Answer: The Government intends for offerors to satisfy the requirement for submitting three required past performance contracts by using and following the instructions in the Past Performance Questionnaire (Attachment 5) only.
9) Question: How does the Government intend to evaluate the 3 previous Government contract questionnaires if a reference fails to submit a questionnaire?  The Offeror does not have control over whether or not a reference will submit the questionnaire. (Reference RFP Section L, section 4.0, page 68)
Answer: If an offeror’s reference fails to submit a questionnaire, the offeror will receive a neutral rating (i.e., the offeror is evaluated neither favorably nor unfavorably) for that contract.
10) Question: RFP instructions limit the narrative description of the Offeror’s most heavily used instantiations of their proposed solution to three contracts. Is the offeror also restricted to the same three references throughout the Relevant Experience section of the proposal, to include the submission of not more than three Relevant Experience Forms (Attachment 6)? (Reference RFP Section L, section 3.0, page 67)
Answer: Offerors are limited to submitting three relevant experience forms.  Offerors shall address all of the requirements reflected in the RFP Section L, section 3.0 Relevant Experience, using the three relevant experience forms.
11) Question: Request the Government delete the requirement calling for an estimated annual salary on key personnel resumes. Costs related to key personnel are in the proposed labor category provided in Volume III, Cost/Price. (Reference Attachment 3, Resume Example)
Answer: The Government does not find it necessary to delete the estimated annual salary requirement from the key personnel resume example.
12) Question: Section 2.5 (page 62) of the RFP requires the Offeror to provide an annotated FADD Matrix.  Additionally, it states that "for each requirement, the Offeror shall identify if the proposed solution has the inherent capability of supporting that requirement."  Is it acceptable if the Offeror substantiates their claim by explaining how their solution meets each requirement as part of their response in the annotated FADD Matrix?
Answer: Offerors are required to annotate the FADD Matrix as defined in section 2.5. The Government expects that, in most cases, this will be a simple "yes" or "no" response. It will be permissible to provide substantiation via FADD annotations in those limited cases where this is required.
13) Question: Section 1.3 (page 6) of the PWS discusses the Contractor delivering a fully functioning and deployable ETMDS package.  It states: "The package and supporting documentation will be comprehensive enough to successfully allow package instantiation and data migration by the existing Government workforce."  What specific responsibilities will the be required of the Government and the Offeror for data migration?
Answer: Contractor responsibilities relative to data migration are defined within PWS section 5.10.4 (Transition from Existing Systems). This section states a requirement that the contractor develop a detailed Software Transition Plan (STrP) defining the method by which operations will be transferred from existing NeL systems to ETMDS. To be considered acceptable, such a plan will conform to CDRL A013. The Government will provide sample data that will allow the contractor to perform initial validation of the migration process. This validation will take place in the contractors facilities during the Application Functional Testing (AFT) phase in accordance with PWS part 4 (Contractor Furnished Items and Services). Additional validation will be conducted by the contractor in a Government provided environment during Application System Integration Testing (ASIT) in accordance with PWS section 3.3 (Testing Environment). The Government will be responsible for executing the migration process as an element of Phase I Go-Live using those processes, utilities, tools, etc. developed by the contractor in support of data migration.
14) Question: Content migration from the existing Thinq LMS will need to include uploading content packages (SCORM or AICC) into the new ETMDS.  This content migration is a prerequisite of data migration which includes user, course, and completion data.  Please explain the Navy's expectations of how this content migration will be performed and by whom.
Answer: The Government views content as another form of data covered under PWS section 5.10.4 (Transition from Existing Systems). The response to question thirteen (13) is equally applicable to question fourteen (14)
15) Question: Section 3.3 (page 14) of the PWS describes the testing environment.  Furthermore, performance requirements, load testing, and testing environments are referenced throughout the PWS.  As part of the testing environment, will the Government provide load testing tools and licenses to support ETMDS testing?
Answer: As stated in section 4.1 of the PWS, the Contractor shall provide all necessary tools, equipment and software applications required for a development environment suitable for testing up to, and through, the Application Functional Testing (AFT). AFT will include preliminary load testing. Section 4.1 explicitly states that the contractor shall provide all necessary tools, equipment and software applications required to support the contractor test environment. PWS section 3.3 further states that the Government will provide all necessary tools, equipment, software applications and computer workstations required to conduct the Application System Integration Testing (ASIT) phase as well as all testing phases that follow ASIT. Load testing conducted in ASIT, and beyond, will employ Government furnished load testing tools and licenses.
16) Question: Section 5.5 (page 17) of the PWS states: "The Contractor shall provide authorized developers and training managers the capability to conduct discovery on content previously ingested into ETMDS for purposes of identifying required changes, re-use and repurposing of learning content".  Since the LCMS (currently Outstart) solution is not within scope of ETMDS, can the Offeror propose alternative content management tools for these requirements?
Answer: Although a replacement for the LCMS is not within the scope of ETMDS, PWS section 5.10.6 (Technical Design Requirements) identifies a requirement for ETMDS to provide an interface that will support launching and tracking LCMS content. In order to provide this capability, it will be necessary for ETMDS to capture catalog and other summary information relative to LCMS content. With respect to LCMS content, the requirement to support discovery on content previously ingested into ETMDS is limited to this data.

17) Question: Section 5.9 (page 19) of the PWS states: "The Contractor shall maintain an Operational Availability (OA) at 97% per month with the target of 99% assuming reliable connectivity is available."  There are additional factors weighing into OA to include infrastructure management which is not required by the ETMDS Offeror but affects uptime.  Please explain the Government's specific expectations of the ETMDS offeror.

Answer: For the purposes of the achieving the Operational Availability requirements established in PWS section 5.9, the contractor shall be responsible only for the operational availability of those software components comprising the contractors ETMDS solution. Although the Government is responsible for the operational availability of the infrastructure used to host ETMDS, an ETMDS solution that minimizes the sensitivity to a single point infrastructure failure would better support the Government’s goal of high availability.
18) Question: Will the Offeror have access to the Navy's Risk Radar Enterprise and the Team Project portal?

Answer: No offerors will be given access to Risk Radar prior to contract award.  However, during the ETMDS period of performance, specifically designated contractor personnel will be granted access to the existing Risk Radar instantiation as well as the PEO-EIS portal. This access will only for the purpose of activities directly associated with the execution of ETMDS activities.
19) Question: Section 2.2.2 (page 59) of the RFP states that the electronic proposal submissions and supporting information shall be submitted consistent with clause L-349.  This clause seems to be missing from Section L, could the Government clarify the requirement?

Answer: The reference to clause L-349 is a clerical error.  The sentence should read instead "Electronic proposal submissions and supporting information shall be submitted consistent with paragraph 2.1.2 above."  The solicitation will be amended to reflect this correction.
20) Question: The “Notional Schedule” defines the contract award date as 18 February 2010 and the end of Phase I as 30 May 2012, approximately 27 months. PWS Section 1.4, Notional Task/Delivery Order Schedule, states that the Government estimates that the period of performance for the first task order (Phase I) will be no more than two (2) years. Request the Government confirm the estimated Period of Performance for Phase I. (Reference PWS Paragraph 1.4 , page 7)

Answer: The ETMDS shall be delivered no later than 30 May 2012, as reflected in Attachment 2, Notional Schedule ETMDS Phase I. The PWS will be corrected to reflect 27 months or 30 May 2012, where applicable.  The revised PWS will be posted.
21) Question: Request the Government allow offerors to submit additional resumes, not counted against the page limit, as “Named Personnel” whose experience and qualifications are highly relevant to the requirements yet will not fill a designated “Key Personnel” position. (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.5.2, section 2.1, page 66)
Answer: The Government will not review or consider any resumes submitted beyond those required by the list of Key Personnel in Section L, section 2.5.2, section 2.1, page 66.
22) Question: Volume I (Offeror), Section B with prices/ costs, the subcontracting plan, and the forward pricing rate agreements each require cost/ pricing data, which would violate the provisions of the RFP page 59/85.  Please clarify how the Offeror is to comply with these requirements? (References: RFP Section L, section 2.1.2, page 59; section 2.3.1, page 60; section 2.3.4, page 61; section 2.6.2, page 69)
Answer: In accordance with RFP Section L, section 2.3.1, Offerors shall submit Section B with CLIN prices or costs and fees in Volume I - Offer. Section L, section 2.1.2 (page 59) and section 2.3.4 (page 61) will be corrected to permit Section B with CLIN prices or costs and fees to be contained in Volume I – Offer.
23)
Question: Please confirm the titles for Section 2.5 Government Production and Research Property (page 61/85) and Sub-Section 2.5 Government Furnished Property (GFP) (page 73/85)? (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.3.3, page 61; section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.5, page 73)
Answer: The reference to “Government Production and Research Property” is a clerical error.  The solicitation will be amended to reflect the term “Government Furnished Property” in Section L, section 2.3.3, (page 61).
24)
Question: The Government has specified in Section L Paragraph (b) Labor Hours that offerors are to: "Provide a spend plan for the entire effort (All CLINS) and a separate plan for each CLIN.  The charts shall document planned labor expenditures by labor category on a monthly basis through the entire effort".  Would the Government please clarify if this requirement is applicable to the FFP CLIN 0005 - Software Licenses and FFP CLIN 0006 Annual Software Maintenance.  Based on the nature of these CLINs, the proposed price would typically not be based on labor hour estimates and therefore this type of backup information would not be applicable.  Would the Government consider eliminating this requirement for both CLINs? (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(b), page 71)
Answer: The requirement for spend plans and charts is not applicable to CLIN 0005 Software Licenses and CLIN 0006 Annual Software Maintenance.  However, offerors are required to submit information to support proposed prices in accordance with RFP Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(a), page 71 (or RFP Amendment 0001, Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(a), pages 22-23).
25)
Question: The principle software comprising the NeL is: Rustici Sharable Content Object Reference Model Engine; Learning Content Management System (LCMS); Electronic Learning Integrated Authentication and Authorization Service (ELIAAS); and Questionmark Perception - Would this software be available on this effort as GFE, i.e. Navy enterprise license? (Reference PWS section 1.2, paragraphs 8-11)
Answer: Please refer to additional information in (RFP) Section L, Section 2.6.3.2, Section 2.0, Subsection 2.5 - Government Furnished Property (GFP), pages 73 – 75 (or RFP Amendment 0001, Section L, Section 2.6.3.2, Section 2.0, Subsection 2.5 - Government Furnished Property (GFP) pages 24- 26).
26) Question: Contractors will provide services as follows - It appears that some paragraphs under sections 5.X are tasks while other sections are written as technical discussion of requirements.  Can you revise this section (Section 5) to be more straightforward regarding base services, other technical requirements, and post core services? (Reference PWS section 5.1)

Answer: The Government does not find it necessary to revise Part 5 of the PWS..
27) Question: Support of access and authentication - What are he "specially designated accounts" which require usernames and passwords?   What roles will these "specially designated accounts" require?  Will the management of these usernames and passwords be handled with the LMS? (Reference PWS section 5.2, paragraph 2)

Answer: PWS section 5.2 will be revised to clarify that ETMDS shall support two access methods: 1) access via a portal or other front end system that will pass authentication to ETMDS or 2) direct access to ETMDS via CAC/PKI with associated DEERS validation. There will be no requirement for specially designated accounts that permit access via username and password only.
28) Question: Maintain multiple versions of instructional content - What "rule sets" are anticipated for when a specific version would be presented (beyond what is provided by segmentation roles in 5.2)?  This implies that there is a versioning system for courseware within the LMS, is that the case? (Reference PWS section 5.5, paragraph 1)
Answer: The selection of the specific version of instructional content to be presented will be governed by the Individual Development Plan establish for individual learners. A versioning system will be supported to the extent that multiple versions can simultaneously exist within ETMDS.
29) Question: These functions would likely be supported by the Outstart LCMS, which the LMS is required to interface with.  Are you looking for some alternate content "discovery" capability within ETMDS? (Reference PWS section 5.5, paragraph 2)

Answer: Please refer to the answer provided in response to question number 16.
30) Question: Provide the ability to generate previously defined reports - Can you provide the list of previously defined reports?  What is the current reporting software?  Would this software be available on this effort as GFE, i.e. Navy enterprise license?  Can you provide representative sample reports? (Reference PWS section 5.6, paragraph 1)

Answer: The Government considers the reports identified in PWS section 5.6 as being sufficiently illustrative of the capability that will be required within ETMDS. Although Crystal Reports is currently in use, offerors are free to propose their own reporting solution. Crystal Reports licenses will not be provided as GFE.
31) Question: On Site Technical Support - The description of these services implies the support required is for one person and is as required.  The go live phase is stated as 2 to 4 months and the effort during post core is as required.  Since there is also travel costs to be considered, as well as labor, this cost may vary based on length of stay. This description of services seems to be in conflict with the request to propose FFP as stated in Section B of the solicitation? (Reference PWS section 5.12)

Answer: Offerors are directed to solicitation Section M, 1.5 Factor 5 - Evaluated Cost for the evaluation of On-site Technical Support. For the purpose of proposal development, offerors shall assume the one month of On-site Technical Support will be ordered in 2013. Solicitation Section L, Section 2.6.3.2, subsection 1.1: Cost Summary will be amended to reflect the additional instruction.  The Government will establish a separate cost only CLIN for travel and will provide a Government estimate for all travel which will become the not to exceed ceiling for the travel CLIN.  Contractors will be required to comply with clause H-350 entitled., “Reimbursement of Travel Costs” throughout contract performance.  The solicitation will be amended to remove the reference to travel from RFP Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(c). The solicitation will also be amended to specifically exclude the travel CLIN from the total evaluated cost calculation and to correct the On-site Technical Support reference from CLIN 0007 to CLIN 0008.
32) Question: Post Core Capabilities:  The effort for post core capabilities is vague.  In pricing this effort under CLIN 0002 it will be based on very subjective assumptions as to the amount of time that may be required for the various tasks.  The responses of the bidders may vary greatly based on assumptions and how aggressive/conservative the approach is to estimating.  How will the government review the pricing for this CLIN to make a valid comparison between the bidders?  If the proposal analysis comes down to price, we are concerned that this CLIN, which is going to be an IDIQ driven, will affect bottom line price analysis. Due to the open ended nature of the Post-Core requirements (PC5.13.1.X) how will these section be fairly evaluated, e.g. treated as sample tasks?  How are estimates to be developed and supported due to the open-ended nature of these technical requirements? (Reference PWS section 5.13)
Answer: As part of Amendment 0001 issued on 11 September 2009, additional instructions were added to Section L, Section 2.6.3.2, subsection 1.1: Cost Summary.  Part of these additional instructions directed Offerors to assume that all Post-Core capabilities will be ordered in fiscal year 2013 for purposes of developing the cost proposal.  The Government anticipates variation in the amount of time required to complete each Post-Core task based on the unique attributes of the Offeror's proposed solution.  As part of the evaluation of Post-Core capabilities, the Government is particularly interested in the proposed implementation methodology the Offeror will use to activate Post-Core functionality.  Offerors are directed to Section M, Subfactor 1.B which states that the Government will consider which subsets of overall ETMDS functionality can be enabled/disabled with only minimal disruption to ongoing ETMDS usage.
33) Question: Can the formal reviews replace the IPRs if they occur in the same quarter? (Reference CDRL A020)

Answer: Offerors should propose quarterly formal reviews and IPRs separately.
34) Question: Please clarify if the intent of CLIN 0008 is to price 18 man-months of labor and associated travel costs for the onsite technical support. (Reference RFP Section B)

Answer: Please refer to the answer that was provided in response to question number 31.
35) Question: CLIN 0008 shows a quantity of 18 month, while the description states the period of performance is from 18 February 2010 through 17 February 2015, a total of 60 months. (Reference RFP Section B)
Answer: The purpose of CLIN 0008 is the allow the Government to order a maximum quantity of eighteen (18) months of support during the five (5) year IDIQ ordering period.  Please refer the answer that was provided to question number 31 for additional information.
36) Question: Amendment 1, Sub-Section 2.5: Government Furnished Property (GFP) states “The licensing agreements for the COTS products can be provided upon request”. Please provide name and address of individual(s) responsible for the licensing agreements so request can be made for a copy of these documents (RFP Amendment 0001, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.5)
Answer: The Government will provide the relevant COTS license(s) to the successful Offeror upon contract award as appropriate. The solicitation will be amended to incorporate this change.  The solicitation will also be amended to include additional information about the COTS licenses for purposes of preparing proposals.  To reiterate what is already stated in the Section L, Section 2.6.3.2, Section 2.0, Sub-Section 2.5 Government Furnished Property, licensing for these COTS products only supports usage at a DoN facility for authorized users for internal Navy purposes and would not accommodate any usage that might need to occur at a contractor facility for developmental effort.
37) Question: Is there an Attachment 7? When can it be made available? (Reference PWS section 5.11.5, page 23)
Answer: See .zip file entitled, "Attachments 7 8 9 10" posted on the SPAWAR e-Commerce web site.
38) Question: Is the contractor responsible for participating in logistics reviews other than help desk and training administrator training? (Reference PWS section 5.11.5, page 23)
Answer: Yes, the Contractor is responsible for participating in all logistics reviews, but these reviews will take place in concert with regularly scheduled In Process Reviews (IPRs).  PWS section 5.11.5 will be revised to reflect that the periodicity of the logistics reviews will be quarterly.
39) Question: Does the Navy intend to provide a template for the annotated FADD matrix so that the contractor can clearly understand the Navy’s expectation? (Reference RFP, page 62)
Answer: No, the Government will not provide a FADD Matrix template.
40) Question: Can Navy validate that maintaining interfaces is limited to level 3 help desk support? (Reference PWS section 5.10.5, page 23)
Answer: In accordance with PWS section 5.10.5, the contractor is responsible for establishing within ETMDS all interfaces identified within the ICS (NeL-NAR-Ashore_ICD-20090814). No ongoing maintenance other than normal Tier 3 support is expected.
41)
Question: Does the Navy currently hold contracts/licenses for or is the Navy procuring any software that would afford the Navy advantageous pricing terms (example, minimal or zero license or maintenance fees) for migration from THINQ to a new LMS product?  If so, will this product be provided to all bidders as GFE to ensure a level playing field (much like what was done with the Navy’s Oracle enterprise license)? (No reference provided)
Answer: The Navy does not possess sufficient data rights in any LMS products which will support the scope of  ETMDS. Therefore, no LMS products will be provided as GFE.
42) Question: Attachment 12 to the RFP, Interface Control Document, states that the requirements contained therein were prepared by a contractor.  Please confirm that the contractor that prepared it is precluded from bidding on ETMDS because of this apparent or actual organizational conflict of interest or provide rationale on why it is not precluded. (No reference provided)
Answer: The ICD merely defines the "as is" interfaces for Navy eLearning and, while relevant to ETMDS, does not define the ETMDS requirements. However, the Government will evaluate and address any potential or actual OCIs as they arise.
43) Question: Hard copy proposal pages are to be single-sided, with no smaller than 12-font size, Times New Roman font on standard 8-1/2 x 11 inch paper in a standard three (3)-hole binder. One-inch minimum margins on each side, including top and bottom are required. Text within tables, diagrams, pictorial charts, or graphic material may use 8-point font. 11 x 17 inch foldout pages are allowed and will be counted as two (2) pages. Every paragraph, figure, and table shall be numbered. Please confirm that every paragraph must be numbered. (No reference provided)
Answer: Yes, every paragraph, figure, and table must be numbered.
44) Question: Given that this is a competitive procurement, can the Navy confirm that bidders are not required to provide cost element details for CLINS that are priced on a Firm Fixed Price basis. (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.6.3, page 70)
Answer: Offerors are not required to submit cost element details for CLINs that are Firm Fixed Price.  However, offerors are required to submit information to support proposed prices in accordance with RFP Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(a), page 71 (or RFP Amendment 0001, Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(a), pages 22-23) as applicable.
45) Question: The RFP requests cost summaries by Contractor Fiscal Year. Please confirm that summaries can also be provided by Contract Year. (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.6.3, section 1.1 Cost Summary, page 70)

Answer: The solicitation will be amended to change “Contractor Fiscal Year” to “Government Fiscal Year.”
46) Question: The RFP asks for most recent three years of prior actual rate history by labor category. Please confirm that for labor categories where rates have been audited by DCAA, the rate history is not required. (Reference RFP Section L, section 2.1 Direct Cost (Labor Hours), page 72)

Answer: Offerors will not be required to submit three years of prior actual rate history by labor category if the proposed labor rates are subject to a Forward Pricing Rate Agreement (to be submitted with the proposal) or if the offerors most recent DCAA audit was completed within the last 12 months of the proposal submission date (audit report to be submitted with the proposal). Solicitation Section L, section 2.6.3.2, subsection 2.1(b) will be amended to include the additional instruction.
47) Question: Please amend solicitation to include FAR 52.249-2 (May 2004) Termination for Convenience of the Government (fixed price) and FAR 52.232-1 Payments (Apr 1984). (Reference RFP Section I)
Answer: The solicitation will be amended to include FAR 52.249-2 (May 2004) Termination for Convenience of the Government (fixed price) and FAR 52.232-1 Payments (Apr 1984).
48) Question: Are Recovery Act funds anticipated to be used on this contract? If so, please include appropriate provisions. (No reference provided)

Answer: No Recovery Act funds will be used on this contract.
49) Question: Paragraph (f) states, “If the offeror wishes to add personnel to be used in a labor category he shall employ the procedures outlined in paragraph (c) above. “ Please confirm this sentence applies to key personnel labor categories only. (RFP Section C, clause C-325(f) Key Personnel)
Answer:  Yes, paragraph (f) of clause C-325 only applies to the key personnel labor categories.
50) Question: The Performance of Work Statement requires on-site technical support for Phase I implementation and Go-Live. Would the Sea Warrior Program Office be open to other methods of Phase I and Go-Live technical support such as a “virtual office” approach? (Reference PWS, section 5.1.2, page 23)

Answer: No, the Government will not consider other methods of Phase I and Go-Live technical support.
51) Question: Could you please clarify requirement PC.5.13.1.1 on page 23 of the PWS “produce an instructional design plan by analyzing skills and work data from work requirements and skills data. (6.1.2.2.7)”?

Answer: Section 5.13.1.1 will be deleted from the PWS. 
52) Question: Can additional detail be provided which clarifies the percent of online and instructor led training?

Answer: For training to be delivered by ETMDS, the Government does not consider the ratio between instructor led training and self paced training relevant to ETMDS proposal preparation.
53) Question: Can further details regarding the various methods of access be provided?  Specifically CAC/PKI. 

Answer: PWS section 5.2 will be revised to reflect that  the CAC/PKI, either from a portal or directly via ETMDS, is the only access method for ETMDS.
54) Question: Can SPAWAR provide on the various levels of administrator roles to be used within the ETMDS?

Answer: In accordance with PWS section 5.2, paragraph 4, ETMDS must provide a high degree of flexibility in determining what actions individual users are allowed to take once logged into ETMDS. The Government will be unable to predefine the nature of various administrator roles until the specific features that might, or might not, be allowed for various roles are defined.
55) Question: Does each administrative environment need to be segregated or will administrators share responsibilities/authority across organizations?

Answer: Administrative roles are assigned to individual account holders and are not organizationally based.  The individual environments identified in PWS section 1.2 (e.g. GCAT, PROD, etc.) are isolated from one another and accounts and associated roles must be assigned on an environment by environment basis.
56) Question: Please describe the classified versus unclassified requirements within the ETMDS?

Answer: There are no required ETMDS design traits or characteristics that are unique to the classified (SIPRNET) environment.
57) Question: Can additional details of the SPAWAR implementation support team be provided, Amount of resources, Roles, Availability, etc?

Answer: The Government Implementation Team will provide the support required to allow the contractor to satisfy their responsibilities relative to ETMDS technical events described in PWS section 1.3. As specified in PWS section 4.1, the contractor will have the responsibility of providing all necessary personnel, tools, equipment and software applications required to conduct testing up to, and through, the Application Functional Testing (AFT) phase.
58) Question: Has a budget been pre-approved for this project?

Answer: Yes.
59) Question: What information will have to be exchanged between the new LMS and other external LMSs currently in production?

Answer: The only external LMS with which ETMDS will exchnage data is the Afloat LMS as described in section 5.3 of the PWS. The requirement to establish an interface with the Afloat LMS is further defined in PWS section 5.10.5  and in the NeL Interface Control Document (attachment 12  NeL-NAR-Ashore_ICD-20090814).
60) Question: The ETMDS PWS includes information and requirements (PWS pages 4,19) that include deploying the selected COTS/GOTS on multiple environments including NIPR, SIPR, and “externally from the internet”. Please provide clarification on which deployments / environments (if any) are required to be hosted, managed and maintained by the selected Vendor.  

a.
For the required vendor managed environment(s), please clarify if near real-time backup and COOP is required (PWS 5.9) 

b.
Will all vendor hosted environments be required to conform to STIG?
Answer: a. Per PWS section 5.9, the Government will provide the near real-time backup of data from the EDC hosting the ETMDS production site and the COOP site. Also per PWS 5.9, the contractors is expected to propose a solution that can operate with this form of COOP technology.
b. Yes, all vendor hosted environments will be required to conform to STIG.

61) Question: In Reference to page 19 of the Interface Control Document (Appendix 12) section 8.0.7:
a.
2nd and 4th tables (LMS to ELIAAS) – This table lists a superset of HR data from LMS to ELIAAS.  Please clarify why the LMS is required to send back HR data to ELIAAS and the origination of these superset (additional) data elements.  

b.
Is ELIAAS the only system containing HR user metadata?
Answer: a. The two way interface between the ELIAAS and the LMS allows ELIAAS to determine if certain data elements need to be updated. i.e. Name changes, rank/rate changes, etc.
b. No, ELIAAS is not the only system containing HR user metadata.

62) Question: In reference to CeTARS:
a.
The interface Control Document (section 8.0.1, tables 1-1, 2-1) lists interface requirements for course data from LMS to CeTARS and vice versa. Which system will be the system of record?  

b.
Will this two-way data flow be required once Phase I is complete?
Answer: a. The LMS is the authoritative source only for eLearning course data.
b. This can not be determined until the details of any post-core delivery orders are defined.
63) Question: Please elaborate on the DoN’s Training needs for the LMS administrators:

a. How many administrators need to be trained?

b. Does the DoN leverage a train-the-trainer approach for the administrators? 

c. To what extent do you require the vendor to support your organization with end-user rollout?

Answer: a. No more than 16 administrators will be trained directly by the contractor during the Delivery Order 0001 period of performance.
b. Yes, as specified in PWS section 5.11.7,  the Government expects to utilize a train-the-trainer approach for follow-on administrator training beyond the 16 administrators cited above.
c. End user roll-out will be the responsibility of the Government. However, the Government may order On-site Technical Support, as defined in PWS section 5.12, to acquire vendor support.

64) Question: What vendor involvement will be required to extract data from existing and/or legacy Navy systems? May vendors assume that the Navy will be responsible for extracting data is a specified format?
Answer: Please refer to the answer provided in response to question number 13.
65) Question: In reference to 6.1.1.1.4 in the PWS (page 16), will all uses be required to authenticate to ETMDS via a CAC-enabled single sign on (SSO) process?  Will there be exceptions to this process where native (vendor supported) product authentication will be required?

Answer: As specified in PWS section 5.2, access to ETMDS will be via a CAC enabled sign on process which validates against DEERS, or via a portal or other Navy approved portal or other front end system that is responsible for performing authentication.
66) Question: Will self registration be required in certain cases for end users to create accounts on the ETMDS? If so, what data elements would need to be collected to create a new user account?
Answer: Self registration via usage of a valid CAC card is the normal method of registration. In such cases, all required data elements are automatically provided via the ELIAAS service described in PWS section 1.2. Those data elements are: 1) first name, 2) middle name - optional, 3) last name, 4) SSN, 5) Date of Birth, 6) foreign national (yes or no).
67) Question: In reference to PWS 5.10.5 in the PWS (page 20), the Navy requires the vendor to support existing interfaces.  Based on the final requirements and technical designs that are created during the Phase I rollout, the existing interfaces may be altered or no longer needed.   If this case, will the Navy change the requirements listed in the Appendix 12, Interface Control Document?

Answer: In the event that interface requirements change during the Phase I period of performance, these changes will be accommodated via an Engineering Change Proposal (CDRL A0018).
68) Question: To augment the logical integration architecture, can the Navy provide network architecture that outlines the orchestration of the integrations (similar to a Enterprise Service Bus – ESB)?

Answer: Offerors are free to propose an integration architecture of their choice for the integration of sub-components within ETMDS. Integration with components external to ETMDS shall be in accordance with PWS section 5.10.5.
69) Question: What vendor involvement is required with architecture design? (hardware, sizing, clustering, etc) of the LMS platform (NIPR, SIPR, etc)

Answer: Within the bounds of RFP Attachment 11, offerors are free to propose whatever application architecture best meets ETMDS RFP requirements (e.g. physical vs. virtual, clustering approach, etc.).
70) Question: In reference to PWS 5.3 on pg 17, a requirement is listed to transfer course information from the LMS to CRANE.  However, the Interface Control Document does not include details on this interface (Section 8.0.10)?  Please clarify if this interface is required and what data elements are needed?

Answer: The Government believes section 8.0.10 of the ICD provides sufficient detail.
71) Question: The ETMDS contains at least two statements (PWS 1.3 Scope and PWS 1.5.4 Technical Data, Computer Software, and Computer Software Documentation) referring to the contractor passing the system to government workforce or team. Question: Will the members of the “government workforce” or “a third-party Government or contractor team” be able to participate in systems configuration workshops (and associated training) that will be used to establish the COTS configuration required to meet the ETMDS requirements? Note: This question is being asked to ensure that the proper training and knowledge transfer sessions are included in the technical approach.

Answer: Yes, members of the “Government workforce” or “a third-party Government or contractor team” be able to participate in systems configuration workshops (and associated training) that will be used to establish the COTS configuration required to meet the ETMDS requirements.
72) Question: Reference “Government workforce,” Will the Navy permit technically qualified members of this workforce to participate in structured training programs provided by the contractor providing the EDMTS software.
Answer: Yes.
73) Question: PWS 1.3 implies that the vendor will provide the government workforce with a product that will be implemented by the government workforce.  PWS 5.12 identifies a requirement for the contractor to provide onsite technical support for two to four months starting at Phase I Go-Live. Is it the intent of these two statements to imply that the contractor would not have involvement with the government workforce between delivery of the fully functional system and the Go-Live? If so, will the Navy entertain technical approaches that reduce the risks associated with completion of systems completion, data migration, and systems transitions for Go-Live?

Answer: The Government expects only minimal interaction between the contractor and government workforce between delivery of the fully functional system and the Go-Live. Furthermore, it is the Government's position that the most effective forms of risk mitigation are the overall processes and various forms of testing addressed within the PMW 240 Technical Event Process (TEP) Guidebook described in section 1.3 of the PWS. The offeror is free to propose additional mitigations if those mitigations add value and are not presented as substitutes for requirements established in the TEP Guidebook
74) Question: The contractor’s responsibilities for Phase 1 appear to end after the testing phase. Is this correct? There does not appear to be a CLIN that would provide for ETMDS Phase 1 “activation” (actual software installation and/or data migration).  If so, please confirm that ETMDS is, essentially, a software procurement. If so, please confirm that the Navy does not intend to hold the winning ETMDS vendor responsible for the operational success of the ETMDS program past the specific testing requirements outlined in the PWS.
Answer: Contractor responsibility for Phase I concludes when the Government determines it is no longer necessary to exercise the Onsite Technical Support defined in section 5.12 of the PWS.
75) Question: Does the Navy intend to task other contractors to install, interface, populate, operate and maintain the ETMDS LMS without having any ETMDS-related formal relationship to the ETMDS vendor?

Answer: Yes.
76) Question: Reference PWS 1.2 Background ELIAAS authentication, will the authentication be able to return details that define the following considerations: 1) Person Type = Military, Civilian, or Dependent, 2) Component = Active or Reserve, Active Duty or Retired, 3) Pay Group = Enlisted, Officer, or Civilian? NOTE: This question is being asked to understand the ability of the ELIAAS to provide the data needed to support the flexible user categories required in PWS 5.2 requirements 6.1.1.2.11 and 6.1.3.1.2.

Answer: ELIAAS provides an interface with DEERS that provides information pertaining to Person Type, Component and Pay Group.
77) Question: Reference PWS 1.4 Notional Task/Delivery Order Schedule, if the contractor specifies an actual schedule that permits completion of Phase 1 in less than two years, will the Navy implement ETMDS following the proposed implementation schedule?

Answer: Section M, Subfactor 2.B states that Offerors may receive a more favorable evaluation for proposing a schedule with earlier delivery of Preliminary Design Review (PDR), Data Migration Plan (part of Software Transition Plan CDRL A0013) and Phase I Go-Live if the proposed schedule is realistic, is supported with sufficient evidence, and will not negatively impact the quality of the deliverables. In accordance with clause C-303 of the Solicitation, the successful contractor's technical proposal will be incorporated as part of the contract.  If the awardee proposed an accelerated schedule that was acceptable to the Government, this schedule would be adopted per this clause.
78) Question: Reference PWS 2.1 POST-CORE, if phase I is completed before the end of FY2012 Q3, will the Navy proceed to implement POST-CORE tasks prior to FY2012 Q4?

Answer: It is at the Government’s discretion if and when follow-on delivery orders will be issued during the five (5) year ordering period. Additionally, in accordance with solicitation clause H-5(f) entitled, “Procedures for Issuing Orders,” the Government reserves the right to order none, some or all of the Post-Core capabilities described in the Performance Work Statement of the basic contract in one or more task/delivery orders.
79) Question: Reference PWS 3.1 Facilities and Services, may the government furnished Internet connectivity to the .com domain permit the contractor to employ contractor provided Webex sessions?

Answer: Yes.
80) Question: Reference PWS 5.10.4, Transition for existing systems, is the scope of this effort limited to the work accomplished to support phase 1?

Answer: Yes, the work described in PWS section 5.10.4 is limited to the transition from the existing Navy eLearning systems to ETMDS that will occur in Phase I.
81) Question: Reference Solicitation 1.3 Contract Award statement, “The Government intends to award a Cost Plus Fixed Fee (CPFF)/ Firm Fixed Price (FFP) five (5) year ….(IDIQ) type contract…” The CPFF awards are reasonable for large logistics contractors with multiple CPFF awards and performing engineering services for a specific customer. The CPFF award may prohibit software vendors from participation based upon the overhead requirements to support this type of contract vehicle and the methods used to provide supporting labor to accomplish required tasks. May this award be based upon established GSA rates with discounts for the ETMDS program?

Answer: Offerors are required to submit the information contained in RFP Section L, section 2.6.3.2, section 1.0 – Summary Cost Data , page 70 (or RFP Amendment 0001, Section L, section 2.6.3.2, section 1.0 – Summary Cost Data, page 21)
82) Question: How many administrators and how many users (See 1.2) are in each category of user? Does the Navy intent to support all users at Phase I GoLive, or will users be phased-in, and if so, how?

Answer: The Government does not consider the ratio of administrative users to non-administrative users relevant to proposal preparation. The Government expects that all exsitng Navy eLearning users will be supported by ETMDS at the conclusion of Phsae I Go-Live. PWS section 5.10.4 states that, "The Contractor shall develop a detailed Software Transition Plan (STrP) defining the method by which operations will be transferred from existing NeL systems to those replaced by ETMDS." Section 1.2 of Section L provides details as to factors the offeror should address in describing their proposed their implementation approach.
83) Question: PWS 5.3 requires a flat file annotated with the specific version of the “Afloat LMS” required to properly deliver the catalog items. Is there a single ETMDS catalog and is this information (the Afloat LMS version) part of the existing ETMTD Catalog?

Answer: In the exisitng Navy eLearning (NeL) instantiation, there is a single catalog maintained with the NeL Learning Management System (LMS). The catalog entry for each course allows individual courses to be flagged as being available in the afloat environment along with an indication of which version of the Afloat LMS is required. The flat file referenced in PWS section 5.3 is generated, as needed, from this single catalog.
84) Question: The FADD Matrix in 6.1.1.2.12 specifies that down time does not include time lost due to the failure of shared infrastructure not under the cognizance of the ETMDS Enterprise owner, yet the same paragraph states that all time spent performing repair of operational mission hardware failures and operational mission software failures is part of Down Time. If ETMDS is hosted by DISA, then some of the hardware and software required for ETMDS operations should be DISA responsibility. Please clarify which hardware and software will be the responsibility of the ETMDS provider.

Answer: Please refer to the answer provided in response to question number 17.
85) Question: PWS Para 4.1 implies that the contractor will host the development/test system. Is this correct?

Answer: Yes, the contractor is required to provide a development and test environment in accordance with PWS section 4.1.
86) Question: PWS 2.6.2 of the Solicitation suggests the Navy has funded ETMDS with $10.2 million over the 5 year period of performance with $2.7 million funded for the first two years and $7.5 million for the remaining three years. Are all of these funds available in the current Navy budget? If not, how much funding is approved for ETMDS by year?

Answer: Adequate funds are available to support ETMDS.
87) Question: Will the Government accept a Firm Fixed Price offer in lieu of Cost Plus Fixed Fee for the CPFF CLINs identified in the RFP?

Answer: No, the Government will not accept a Firm Fixed Price offer in lieu of Cost Plus Fixed Fee for the CPFF CLINs.
88) Question: Is there an incumbent on contract for this opportunity?

Answer: Please refer to the answer provided in response to question number 2.
89) Question: Is your organization live or will they be live on SAP ECC6.0 at time of implementation?

Answer: No.
90) Question: Is your organization using Employee Self Service?

Answer: Yes, Employee Self Service is being used in the sense that, for certain instructional events, users may self register for those events.
91) Question: Is your organization using Manager Self Service?

Answer: Yes, in the sense that curriculum managers, and other specifically designated personnel are able to assign instructional events to end users.
92) Question: Is your organization using SAP Workflow?

Answer: No.
93) Question: Is your organization SAP Enterprise Portal?

Answer: No.
94) Question: Is your organization using a Web2.0 portal such as Sharepoint?

Answer: A portal based on the Art Technology Group (ATG) version 2006.3 is in use.  The MPT&E organization is not using SharePoint.
95) Question: Do you have an existing virtual classroom partner?

Answer: There is not an organization or commercial entity that serves as an virtual classroom partner.  Various applications and services such as WebMeeting and  Defense Connect OnLine provide a degree of virtual classroom capability.
96) Question: Is the government looking for a hosted solution or just recommendations from a hosting perspective and it will be hosted by the government?

Answer: The Government is not seeking a hosted solution.
